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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Chandra Gupta Estates Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Chandra Gupta Estates Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standard) Rules,2015, as amended ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the Financial Statements
and our auditors' report thereon. The Board's Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this Auditors Report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not ccver the other information, and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibili$ is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

As and when we receive and read the Board's Report, in the event we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance in

the manner required.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial
Position, Financial Performance including other comprehensive income, Cash Flows and Statement of
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related drsclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Mafters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31,2024, and the
opening balance sheet as at the transition date of April 1,2023, included in these financial statements,
is based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2021. These financial statements were audited by the
previous statutory auditors, whose reports dated Augusl31,2024, and September 16, 2023, for the
years ended March 31,2024, and March 31 ,2023, respectively, expressed an unmodified opinion. The
financial information has been adjusted for differences in accounting principles arising from the
Company's transition to lnd AS, and these adjustments have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ("the Orded'), issued by the Central
Governmentof lndiaintermsof sub-section(11)of section 143of theCompaniesAct,20l3,we
give in the "Annexure A" of this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the lnd AS prescribed under Section
133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B" to this report;

(g) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration is payable for the year ended March 31,2025, by the Company to its directors.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have an impact on its
financial position in its Financial Statements;
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund during the year.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneflciaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Relying on information, publication and other explanations provided by the software
product vendor, the Company and test checks carried out on the software application, we
report that, in our opinion the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining
their books of account having feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has
been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any
instances of the audit trail feature being tempered with. Additionally, the audit trail has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For T. P. Ostrnral 6g Associ ates T T-P

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124444WNU1 001 50

.q4 L /:.';

Esha P. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 14387 4 *
U Dl N : 251 4387 4BMM KEA907

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025
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Annexure - A to the lndependent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of Chandra Gupta
Estates Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 , under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
Report of even date)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
(A) details and situation of Property, Plant or Equipment.

(a) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) is not
(B) applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company does not have any Property, Plant or Equipment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ixb)
is not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no immovable
properties are held by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or lntangible Assets under Development
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami propefi under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

iii

vi

vii (a)

iv

v

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. ln our opinton,
the frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and
appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us by the management, during the year the
company has not made investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not granted any loan or made any investment or given any guarantees or securities as
defined under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public nor has it received any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, paragraph 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Central
Government of lndia has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)

of Section 148 of the Companies Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-tax and
other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and there
are no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable as at March 31,2025.

4
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According to the records and information & explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of lncome Tax and other material dues that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities to the extent applicable on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1 961 ).

According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings
or in payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from any bank or financial institution or other lender.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on short
term basis. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

no fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company noticed or reported during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of
the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government of lndia for the period covered by our
audit. The provisions of Cost audit and Secretarial audit are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company
has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

ln respect of transactions with related parties,

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, company is in compliance with the section 188 of the Act and requisite details
have been disclosed in the financial statements.

(b)

viii

ix (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

x (a)

(b)

xi (a)

(b)

(c)

xii

xiii

(a)

4
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According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company is
not required to carry out the internal audit as per section 138 of the Act. Accordingly,
paragraphs 3(xii)(a) and 3(xii)(b) of the order are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia

Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of lndia as per the

Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

The company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of lndia.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, there are no

other Core lnvestment Companies as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but has incurred cash

losses of Rs. 2.41 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

As represented to us, the previous statutory auditor has resigned during the year due to the

non-availability of a valid Peer Review Certificate, which is mandatory under the applicable
guidelines. We have considered the reason for resignation and noted that no audit objections,

concerns, or issues were communicated by the outgoing auditor that would have an impact on

our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board

of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date based on the letter of support from the Parent
Company. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and

when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
paragraphs 3(xx) (a) and (b) are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xxi) is not applicable to the Company.

Fot T. P. Ostwal es Assoclates T.r P
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124444WM1
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@rL
Esha P. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 14387 4
U DIN : 251 4387 4BMMKEA9072
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025
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ANNEXURE B to lndependent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of Chandra Gupta
Estates Private Limited

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the rnternal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Chandra Gupta

Estates Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibitity for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internalfinancial controls

based on the internal control with reference to the Financial Statements criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants

of lndia ('lCAl') (the "Guidance Note").

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference

to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit

of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internalfinancialcontrolwith reference to Financial Statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

I
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lnherent Limitations of tnternal Financial Controls with reference to these Financia! Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation

of the internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these Financial Statements may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with

reference to Financial Statements and such internalfinancial controls were operating effectively as at

March 31,2025, based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components of internalcontrol stated in the Guidance Note.

For T. P. Ostwal Ns Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124444WM1 001 50

@1 g, l!

i3rrt 1.-:iEsha P. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 14387 4
UDIN: 25143874BMMKEA

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025
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Chandra Gupta Estates Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Millions except per share data or as otherwise stated)

1. Corporate lnformation

Chandra Gupta Estates Private Limited (ClN: U70100MH'1988PTC049306) is primarily engaged in the
business of Real Estate Development of Residential and Commercial Projects. The Company was
incorporated on 19th October 1988 and has its registered office in Mumbai.

The Financial Statements are approved by the Company's Board of Directors at its meeting held on
April26,2025.

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

(i) Statement of compliance-

These flnancial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company prepared in

accordancewith lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') notified underSection 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2024,hhe Company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified underthe Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2021 ('Previous
GAAP'). Detailed explanation on how the transition from previous GAAP to lnd AS has affected the
Company's Balance Sheet, financial performance and cash flows is given under Note 2B.1

(ii) Basis of measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except
for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant lnd AS:-
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments)
- Net defined benefit obligation;

(iii) Current versus non-current classification

The Company, as required by lnd AS 1, presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on

currenUnon-current classification. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities. Based on the nature of business conducted, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle from Commencement of the Project till Completion of Project for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities have been classified into current and
non-current based on their respective operating cycle.

(iv) Presentation currency and rounding off
All amounts disclosed in financial statements are reported in millions of lndian Rupees and have been

rounded off to the nearest millions up to two decimals, except per share data and unless otherwise
stated. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off, have been reflected as "0" in the

relevant notes to these financial statements

(v) Going Concern
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a
going concern.

(vi) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

(vii) Critical Accounting estimates
a) Useful lives of properg, plant and equipment (Proper$, plant and equipment, and investment
property)

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in changes in depreciation expense in future periods.

b) Defined benefit obligations
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increase and mortalig rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long{erm nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

c) Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of lnd AS
116. ldentification of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods converted by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and periods covered by on option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain not to exercise that option. ln assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic lncentive for the Company to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company reviews the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at costless accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable/allocable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. The cost also includes direct cost and other
related incidental expenses.

(ii) Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to use, on written down value
method as per the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule ll of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation method, useful life and residual value are reviewed periodically.

The carrying amount of PPE is reviewed periodically for impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount
of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset's net selling price and value in use.
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(iii) De-recognition
PPE are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of de-recognition.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue through the sale of under construction residential/commercial as well as

completed units which are recognized in the financials as inventories.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

(a) Revenue from real estate projects
The Company recognizes revenue, on execution of agreement and when control of the goods

or services are transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration (i.e.

the transaction price) to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for those

goods or services excluding any amount received on behalf of third party (such as indirect

taxes). An asset created by the Company's performance does not have an alternate use and

as per the terms of the contract, the Company has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed till date. Hence the Company transfers control of a good or service

over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time.

The Company recognises revenue at the transaction price which is determined on the basis of

the sale agreement entered into with the customer. The Company recognises revenue for

performance obligation satisfied over time only if it can reasonably measure its progress

towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The Company uses cost-based input method for measuring progress for performance

obligation satisfied over time. Under this method, the Company recognises revenue in

proportion to the actual project cost incurred as against the total estimated project cost.

ln a Joint development arrangement (JDA) wherein the landowne(s) (including Unit holders of

existing premises) provides development rights and in lieu of such rights the Company transfers

a certain percentage of constructed area; the revenue is recognized over time using cost-based

input method of percentage of completion. Project costs include fair value of such development

rights received and this fair value is accounted for on the date of handover to the Company by

the landowner(s).

The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodically and considers

changes in estimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in estimates is recognized

prospectively in the period in which such changes are determined.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. lf the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before

the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for

the earned consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

lf a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the

customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due
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(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to

accounting policies of financial assets in note 1.2.6 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement.

(b) Other income
Other incomes are accounted on accrual basis

2.4 Leases

The determination of whether a contract is (or contains) a lease arrangement is based on the substance

of the contract at the inception of the arrangement. The contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

provide lessee, the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. A lessee does not have the right to use an identified asset if, at inception of the contract,

a lessor has a substantive right to substitute the asset throughout the period of use.

The Company accounts for the lease arrangement as follows

(i) Where the Company is the lessee
The Company applies single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short

term leases and leases of low value assets. On the commencement of the lease, the Company, in its

Balance Sheet, recognises the right of use asset at cost and lease liability at present value of the non-

cancellable lease payments to be made over the lease term.

Subsequently, the right of use assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment loss. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method. The lease payments made, are apportioned between the finance charge and the

reduction of lease liability and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease deposits given are a financial asset and are measured at amortised cost under lnd AS 109 since

it satisfies Solely Payment of Principal and lnterest (SPPI) condition. The difference between the

present value and the nominal value of deposit is considered as prepaid rent and recognised over the

non-cancellable lease term. Unwinding of discount is treated as finance income and recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.5 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future

cash receipts or payments over the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter period, where

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

(i) Financial assets
(a) lnitial measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value Trade
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receivables are initially recorded at transaction value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial

recognition of financial assets.

(b) Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost, if both of the following criteria are met:

a. These assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows; and
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on

the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the EIR method. EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCI)

Financial assets are classified as FWOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. These assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by

collecting contractualcash flows and selling the financialassets; and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on

the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value movements are recognised in the Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl). On

derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is

reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Any financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost

or as FWOCI, are classified as FWPL. Gain or losses are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

iv. Equity instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by

an acquirer in a business combination are classified as FWPL, and measured at fair value

with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from

the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-

recognition.

\Men the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered

into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
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and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to

recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. ln that

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Company has retained.

(d) lmpairment of financial assets

The Company follows'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

i. Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss

(ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company

determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. lf, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financlal instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the enti$ expects to receive (i.e. all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original ElR.

(ii) Financia! liabilities

(a) lnitial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's

financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and financial

guarantee contracts.

(b) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process.



Chandra Gupta Estates Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Millions except per share data or as otherwise stated)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company's

financial statement when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled

or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the

financial statement if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

(iaa) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer

the liability takes place either:
(a) ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant

observable inputs:
i. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities.
ii. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

iii. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable. For assets and liabilities that are

recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
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assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets

and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and

the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the financial statement comprise cash at banks and on hand,

demand deposit and short{erm deposits, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash

and shortterm deposits, as defined above.

2.7 lncome taxes

(i) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be

refunded from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are in

force at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is

recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in Other Comprehensive

lncome or in equig). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on

a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where approPriate.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(a) \Mren the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset

or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised

outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such deferred tax items are recognised in correlation

to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive lncome or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected

to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be

received or settled.

2.S lnventories

(i) Construction work in Progress

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost

includes cost of land, materials and consumables, development rights, rates and taxes,

construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other

incidental expenses.

(ii) Finished stock of completed projects

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net

realisable value.

2.9 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) A provision is recognised when:

(a) The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b) lt is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation; and

(c) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(ii) lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks speciflc to the liability. When discounting

is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance

cost.

(iii) A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present

obligation that may, but probably may not, require an outflow of resources. A contingent liability

also arises in extreme cases where there is a probable liability that cannot be recognised

because it cannot be measured reliably.

(av) \A/here there is a possible obligation or a present obligation such that the likelihood of

outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of qualif,Ting assets
are capitalised as part of their costs.

Borrowing costs are considered as part of the asset cost when the activities that are necessary

to prepare the assets for their intended use or sale are in progress.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense, in the period in which

they are incurred.

2.11 Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach" as defined in lnd AS 108 Operating Segments, the

Chairman and Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance based

on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Segment revenue and

expense include amounts which can be directly attributable to the segment and allocable on

reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities are assets/liabilities which are directly

attributable to the segment or can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

lncome/expenses/assets/liabilities relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a
reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as unallocated income/ expenses/ assets/

liabilities.

2.12 Employee benefits

(i) Salaries and wages

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of
rendering the services are recognised up to the end of the reporting period and are measured

at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity is calculated on the basis

of actuarial valuations carried out at the reporting date and is charged to the Statement of Profit

and Loss. The actuarial valuation is computed using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on

plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are

recognised immediately in the financial statement with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

(iii) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund for all its employees. Contributions

are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such

benefits

2.13 Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profiU(loss) for the year attributable to equity

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profiU(loss) for the year attributable

to equity shareholders and the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during the year are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2B. First-time Adoption of lnd As

28. 1 Exemptions Availed on First Time Adoption of lnd As

A. Optiona! Exemptions Availed

lnd AS 101, First-time Adoption of lndian Accounting Standard, allows first{ime adopters certain
exemptions from the retrospective application or certain requirements under lnd AS. The Company has
accordingly applied the following exemptions:

(i) Deemed Cost: Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible assets

lnd AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the financial statement as at the date of
transition to lnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as the deemed cost as at the
date of transition. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its proper$, plant and
equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date.

The Company has elected to measure intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its
deemed cost on the date of transition to lnd AS.

(ii) Classification and Measurement of FinancialAssets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with lnd AS 109 on the basis of facts
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to lnd AS.

(iii) Leases
The Company has applied the modified retrospective approach in applying lnd AS 116.

B. Mandatory Exceptions

(i) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP Financial Statements, the
Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under lnd AS, as there
is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under
lnd AS but not required under previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting
dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in preparation of
financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:
. Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost.
' Determination of impairment allowance (ECL) on trade receivables.

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets and !iabilities

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets and liabilities on the basis
of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the standard permits
measurement of financial assets and liabilities accounted at amortized cost based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is lmpracticable.
Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets and liabilities based
on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets and
liabilities accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable.
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(iii) lmpairment of Financial Assets

At the date of transition to lnd AS, determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since the initial recognition of a financial asset would require undue cost or effort, the
Company has recognized a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
at each reporting date until that financial instrument is derecognized.

C The following Reconciliations provide a quantification of The effect of differences arising from the
transition From Previous GAAP To lnd AS as required under lnd AS 101

(a) Reconciliation of total Equity as at 1 April2023 and as at31March2024
(b) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024

(i) Reconciliation of total equity as at 1 April,2023 and 31 March 2024

(ii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March2024

-(a) Deferred Tax

Under Previous GAAP the Company had not recognized deferred tax on carried forward business
which has now been recognized as per guidance under lnd AS 12 'lncome taxes.

Particulars Refer
Note D

As at 31 March
2024

As at 1 April
2023

Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per
lndian GAAP

(6.32) (1.51)

Adiustments:
Adiustment arisinq on adoption of lnd AS 12 (i) 0.99 2.27
Adiustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 19 (ii) 0.02 (0.02)

Adjustment to revenue due to change in

timing of revenue recognition (lnd AS 1 15)
( iii) 24.82 128.49

Adjustment to cost due to changes in timing
of revenue recoqnition

(iii) (28.10) (135.e2)

Adjustment on account of transition to lnd
AS 116

(iv) (0.01)

lncrease in other comprehensive income (0.02) 0.00
Totalequity (shareholde/s funds) as per lnd
AS

(8.61) (6.6e)

Particulars Refer
Note D

For the year ended
31March2024

Profit after Tax as per lndian GAAP (4.81)

Adjustments:
Adiustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 12 (i) (1.28)

Adiustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 19 0.04
Adjustment to revenue due to change in timing of revenue
recosnition (lnd AS 1 15)

( iii) -103.67

Adjustment to cost due to changes in timing of revenue
recognition

(iii) 107.82

Total Adjustments 2.91

Profit after Tax as per lnd AS (1.e0)

Remeasurement Gain / Loss of defined benefit plan
lncome Tax Effect on above

(0.02)
0.00

Other Comprehensive lncome as per lnd AS (0.02)

TotalComprehensive lncome as per lnd AS fi.92)
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(All amounts are in INR Millions except per share data or as otherwise stated)

(ii) Remeasurement gain / loss of net defined benefit plan

Under Previous GAAP the Company recognized actuarial gains and losses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Under lnd AS, all actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the other
comprehensive lncome. Further to the above, the deferred tax effect on the above transaction has
also been regrouped from Statement of Profit and Loss to other comprehensive income as per
guidance under lnd AS 12'lncome taxes.

(iii) Revenue from contracts with customers

As per Previous GAAP Policy

Revenue from sale of constructed properties for all projects is recognised in accordance with the
Revised Guidance Note issued by lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") on
"Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (Revised 2012)". As per this Guidance Note, the revenue
have been recognised in terms of the percentage of actual projects costs incurred thereon to total
estimated projects cost, provided all of the following conditios are met at the reporting date:

Required critical approval for commencement of the projects have been obtained.
At least 25% of estimated construction and development costs (excluding land cost) have been
incurred.
At least 25o/o of the saleable project area is secured by the Agreement to Sell/application forms
(containing salient terms of the agreement to sell); and
At least 10% of the total revenue as per agreement to sell are realized in respect of these
agreements.

As per lnd AS, an entity shall recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

(v) Leases

Under Previous GAAP, there was a difference in the method of accounting for operating leases as
compared to the provisions of lnd AS. The same has been accounted for as per the Provisions of
lnd AS.



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CIN : U 70 I 00M H I 988 PTC0493 06

Balance Sheet

Particulors

I ASSETS

I Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

i. Other financial assets

Defeffed tax assets (net)

Total non-current assets

2 Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

i. Trade receivables

ii. Loans

iii. Cash and cash equivalents

iv.Other Bank Balance

v.Other fi nancial assets

lncome tax assets (net)

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

tr EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Bonowings

ri. Other financial liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i..Borrowings

ii.Lease liabilities

iii.Trade payables

A. Total outstanding dues ofmicro and small enterprises

B. Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro and small enterprises

iv. Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes I to 47 are integral part ofthe financial statements

For T.P. Ostwal [g Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 124444W100150W

5. l6
17.03

53.50

149. I 8

0.00

13.85

0.13

2.89
4.22

13.29

0.00

Note As at
March 31,2025

0.00

As at

March 31,2024

(Amt in INR Millions)

As et
April 01,2023No.

3

I
5

1.00

0.09

0.00

1.00

2.90

0.12

2.31

2.27

1.10 3.90 4.70

6

7

8

9

l0

t2
IJ

1,356.1 3

t 30.51

0.09

8.78

1.45

250.36

0, r0
6.7E

1,173.80

75.66

45 67

qq.qt

6.32

93.60

854.50

19.32

55 30

ti.ts
0.2s

43.2s

1.754.19 1,439.47 1,M7.37

1,7s5,29 1,443.37 1,0s2.07

11

t5

t6
l7
t8

0. l0
140.00

0.r0
(8 7l)

0. l0
(6.7e)

140.10 (E.6r) (6.6e)

0.36 0. r7

I 80.00

10.99

0.02

0.36 0.17 19t.02

19

20
)t

22

23

24

25

1,376.10 1,299.60

3.43

19.17

45.63

83.98

0.00

847. l0
0.12

1,615.19 1,45t.9E t,0sE.76

1,755.29 1,443.t7 1,0s2.07

2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited

CIN l00MHl

&4
Esha P. Shah

Panner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2025

Ramesh Ludhani
Director

DIN No. 06992037

Rakesh Gupta
Director

DIN No.10872369

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai[r,.. rao y'v, *
o.
F.

&AS

Su'ie #
'11 -f 1 .iC7,

Date:Apr1126,2025 Date:Api126,2025

I

*
t,,-:'ar ,13



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
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Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

INCOME
L Revenue from operations

II. Other Income

III. Total Income

IV. EXPENSES
Cost of consruction and development

Changes in inventories offrnished goods and project work-in-progess
Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

V. Prolit(loss) before tax (III-IV)

Tax expense:

Current tax

Defened tax

VI. Total trx expetrses

VII. Profit /(loss) for the yerr (V-Y!

V[I. Other comprehensive income

Items thrt will not be reclassilied to profit or loss:

Remeasuements of post+mployment benefit obligations gain / (loss)

Income tax on the above

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the ycar, net oftax

I)L Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

)L Earnings per equity share:

Basic and diluted eamings per share (face value of t 10/- each)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes I to 47 arc integral part of the financial statements

For T.P. Ostwal Gs Assocdates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 12'14 4 { Wl00l 50W

Esha Shah
Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

(0.02)

0.00

(0.0r) (0.01)

148.71

14,871.98 (1e0.30)

For rnd on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CIN:U70 19E8PTC049306

R:"r+
Rakesh Gupta
Director

DN No.10872369

Nole
Na

26
27

28

29

30

3l
3

32

For the year ended

March 31,2025

1,034. l5
0.56

(Amt in INR Millions)

For the year ended

March 31,2024

50 I .50

0.82

1,034.71 502.32

914.51

(182.33)

0.00

103.62

750.39
(319.3 r)

0.00

0.1 I
73.64

835.80 504.85

198.91 (2.s3)

rc.62\
47.38

2.El

50.19 $.621

148.,72 (l.90)

(0.02)

0.00

2

Ramesh Ludhrni
Director
DN No. 06992037

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2025
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

'.,-.]s(r(

M.li.:,a,

Su ia #
r1i',,3il7,

1i

r,r i



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
C IN: U70 I 00 MH I 9 I t PTC0193 06

Statement of Cash Flow

Particuhn

A. Crsh 0ow from opcrrting rctivitics
Net profiU(loss) before tax

Adiustmcnts for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest on deposits with bank

Provision for Gratuity
Finance cost

Opereting prolit (loss) beforc working crpital chrnges

Chrnses in workins caoital :

(lncrease/decrease in Trade receivables

(Increase/decrease in inventories

(Increase/decrease in Loans
(Increase/decrease in other current assets

(Increase/decrease in other financial assets

(Decrease/ increase in other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions (current and

non-current)

(Decrease/ increase in trade payables

(Decrease/ increase in other current liabilities
Crsh flows gcncmtcd from / (used in ) opcreting rctivities
Income taxcs (paid) / refimded (net)

Net crsh flows gcncratcd from / (used in ) opcreting ectivitics

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from fixed deposit

Investnent made in Fixed Deposit
Interest reccived

Net cash flows generated from / (used in ) investing activities

C. Crsh flow from financing rctivities
Proceeds from bonowings
Repayment of 5.35% Non-convertible debentures

Repayment of lease liability
Repayment ofbonowings
Interest paid

Nct crsh flows genereted from / (used in ) finencing ectivitics

Net (decreesc/ incrcrse in cash rnd cash cquivrlcnts (A) + (B) + (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the errd oftlrcyan (reter note 9)

Opening Brlenccs
lrng-term bonowings

Short-term bonowings

Changes rs per statemetrt of cash flow
Long-term bonowings

Short-term bonowings

Closing Brhnccs
Long-term bonowings

Short-term bonowings

For T.P. Ostwal dr Assocdatee LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 124444W/100 l50W

49.93 261.76

(36.90) 0.621

45.6'1

For the yeer ended

March 3I,2025

r 98.91

0.00
(0.3s)

0. l8

(Amt in INR Millions)

For the year ended

Mrrch 31,2024

(2.s3)

0.11
(0.82)

0. l4
9.66

(s4.8s)

(t7s.44)
(0.0e)

86.82

(206.s6)

27.56

198.74

(0.40)

65.20

(s9.03)

(27.32)

6.56

(s6.34)

(30e.6s)

(s0.35)

3l .00

2t.'12

19.57

70.69

(266.7e)
(6.07)

A (86.3s) (272.86)

( l.4s)
0.97

I .31

0. l7
B (0.48) 1.48

780.00

( 180.00)

(s23.s0)

(26.s7)

452.50

(0. r2)
(180.00)

( r 0.62)

C

s5.30

8.78 45.67

Notes:
i. The accompanying notes I to 47 are integral part ofthe financial statements

ii. The above Statement ofCash Flow has been prepared under the'Indirect Method'as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - "Statement ofCash Flow"

Dcbt rcconcilirtion strtcmcnt in accordencc with IND AS 7

t,299.60

76.50

1,376. l0

For rnd on bchelf of thc Borrd of Directors of
Chandra Gupa Estates Private limited

CIN:U70 I 00MH I 988PTC049306

For the year ended

March 31,2025

For the year ended

March 31,2024

180.00

847. l0

(180.00)

452.50

1,299.60

&=L QewA
Esha P. Sheh

Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2025

Ramesb Ludhrni
Director

DIN No. 06992037

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2025

Rakesh Gupta
Director
DIN No.10872369

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2025

-- Js

S, le{
-t'i.- l,l7
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t-
*

i-
f-

*
fY! "ir !al
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Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CI N: a 70 1 00M H I 9 8EPTC049 306

Statement of Changes in Equity

A) Equity Share Capital

Prrticulrrs

-q4
Esha P. Shah
Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

Opening balance
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Closing bahnce l4

B) Other equity

Particulars

Bahnce as at I April 2024
holit for the year

Items ofother comprehensive income for the year

As at 3l Mrrch, 2025

Bahnce as rt I April 202;|
Fint time adoption of IND AS

Profit for the year

Items ofother comprehensive income for the year

As at 3l March,2024

Summary of sigrificant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes I to 47 ue integral part ofthe linancial statements

For T.P. Ostwal & Associates LI,P
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 12444'lWl00l50w

( 1.61)

(s. le)
(1.e0)

(0.01)

(8.70) (0.0r) (E.71)

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CIN:U70 I 00MHl 988PTC049306

Notes As st
Merch 31,2025

0. l0

As at
March 31,2024

0.r0

(Amt in INR Millions)

As at
March 31,2023

0.10

0.10 0.r0 0.10

Retained earnings
Other comprehensive

income Total Other Equity

(8.71)

148.72
(0.01)

(8.70)

t48.72

(0.01)

(0.01)

(l.6r)
(s. l e)
( l.e0)
(0.0r)

Gwt}
Ramesh Ludhani
Director
DIN No. 06992037

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

Rakesh Gupta
Director
DIN No.10872369

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

\9r ,i

lvr.,f rdr'13

1r'i, l!7,
[..,] --. --rs

S-'q fl

140.02 (0.02) 140.00



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CIN: U7 0 I 00MH I 9 8EPTC01 93 06

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

J Tangible assets

Particulars

Yeer ended March 31. 2025

Gross carrYing amount
Balance as at April l, 2024

Additions

Disposals

Transfen

Balance as at March 31. 2025 [Al

Accumulated denreciation

Balance as at April l, 2024

Depreciation & Amortisation charge during the year

Disposals

Balance as at March 31. 2025 tBI

Net carrvins amount as at March 31.2025 [A-Bl

Year ended March 31. 2024

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April l, 2023
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

Balance as at March 31. 2024 [Cl

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April l, 2023

Depreciation & Amortisation charge during the year

Disposals

Balance as at March 31. 2024 [Dl

Net carrvins amount as at March 31. 2024 [C-Dl

Period ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount
Balance asatAprill,2022
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

Balance as at April 01, 2023 IEI

Net carrying amount as at April 01,2023

Furniture &
fixtures

0.01

(Amt in INR Millions)

Right of use asset Total

0.31 0.32

0.01 0.31 0.32

0.00

0.00

0.3 r 0.31

0.00

0.0r 0.31 0.32

0.00 0.00

0.01 0.3 r 0.32

0.01 0.31 0.32

0.00
0.00

0.20
0.1I

0.20
0.rl

0.00 0.31 0.31

0.00 0.00

0.0 r 0.31 0.32

0.01 0.31 0.32

,..'.

4'

0.01 0.t I o.t2



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
Cl N : U 70 I 00M H I 988PTC049306

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Particulan

5 t) Incomc tar expensc

Cumnt aar

ClllMt h m prcfits fd the y@
AdjBmb fd cuM 6 of prid Fiod!

Totd cureoa asr crp@s

Defened lncomc Tu Lbbitity / (Aso Nco
Origiotio and cvcsl of mpoary difre
Tu ErpeN for dE y6

(b) Rsotrciliation of Elfctivc Tu Rsac

4 Othcr finatrcisl Bsas - Notr{ur.Ma
(Unsurd, c$iderEd g@d)

B€la@ wilh bank h fixed depo6ib, with mtuity b€ynd I 2 IMdNr
Toaal

' Incfudefixd dqnsits fu 3l Ltstch 2025 Rs 1.00 Millions,3l Ma.ch 2021 Rs 1,00 Miilions & 3l March 2023 Rt I.N)

A! at
Mrrch 31,2025

At tt
Msrch 31,2024

1.00

(Ant in niR Millios)

As 8t
Apdl 01, 2023

2.311.fl)

t.00 r.00 23t

47 3A

4738

2.il (0.62)

sloff

Prcrit /(6s) beforc h
Suutory in@me 6 Ete

Tax using the @mpey's dom(ic a mle

Tu elTEt ofl
PelrmmrDi$llw@
Othes

Tar s calculrted

t9t.9t
25.17'/c

50.06

(2.53)

2s.tT/.
(0.64)

0.05

0.07

50.19

0.0t

(0.62)

(b) Movcmcnt in defered tar balanc6:

Deferred Tu (As*ts) / Liabilitie

PPE

ROU AsseE

CENity Provision

Umbwted dep@i6ti@

TmpoBrydisallre
B@ght fward 16
Diffftre in rHhod of t@gniti@ of lt@e ard Eht d 6. bd@ a !c.@B ond b@l!

Totd

Dcfcrrcd Tu (As$ts) / Lirbilitid

PPE

ROU AsG
La$ Lbbihtr6
GaEity Prcvisid

S6ury DepGrts

Udbsrbed dep@idim

T@porarydisllo@
BrcughI foNard 16
Did'elrc in rethod of twgnitiil of BaE md rclaled Gl bercn Ex e,mts md b6ks

Nct balance a on Rccogniscd in Prolit
I April' 2024 rnd ksr

(0 00)

(0.00)

(0.M)

(0.00)

(0.06)

(r.89)

(0.m)

RsoStrisd
in OCI

Nca Ilefered Tar
(Assct) / Li8bility N
on March 31,2025

(0.00)

(0.04)

0.00

0.06

Lt9
0.90

(0.0o)

(0.m)

(0.0e)(0.00)

Nct brlane N on Rcognisd in Prcnl
I April' 2023 ud tprr

Reognircd
in OCI

Nct Dcfcred Tu
(A&.) / LirbiliB s
on Mrrch 31,2024

(0.00)

0.03

(0.03)

(0.01)

(0.0o)

(0.0o)

(0.33)

(r e3)

(0 00)

(0.03)

0.03

(0.04)

0.00

(0.00)

(0.06)

(1.56)

1.03

(0.00)

(0.00)

0.00 (0.04)

(0.00)

(0.05)

(r.8e)

(0.90)

Totsl (2.211 (0.63) 0.00 (2.m)

Not6:

re@gnised defered tax 6sets @ uab$rb€d buiness lose on 6e bris of prudae.

sme tu authority.

lnventoriB
(Valu€d sl l@q of st md d Mlisable valE)
CoNMiq wdl-hrrcgN
Finished gods
Totsl

I,173.80 854.50

1,356. I 3

1,355.r3 l l73.t0 E t.50

7 Trrdc ueivable
UlEuE4 oNidsrd tood 130.5t 75.66 t9.72

1932Total Bcivsbld'
. Refq T6de @imble aBeing n Nde 7. I

t$5t 15.6

I



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
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Not€s to the Finsncisl StstemeDB (Continued)

PuaiculE

7.1 Tndc mivrblo rgdaj rnrlyrir

E Ilu
fer b EEploys.

ll Othcr fuucid tsg - aurot
(UtEuEA F.iddbd good)

As{.d iffit o 6sd d.Eoiu
Dqo.iE wil[ dnst
Utrbilcdtttqr

Toad

12 ltrcomc lu .eb
Ad@ tu .Dd TDS (d of D@vtuis)

Toarl

13 Othcr curetrt astt
PEp.id cxFs
Ad@ b.upplia
H6dtt@crpadi@
GST ir9a B srdit
ortrs Ei{ble3
EBPT@ait

Totd

'Rcpsyabla o dqud Urd ht€r6t tE bq gir b wlarad parriB

Cuh Dd eh cquivrho6
Csh h h!trd
B.l{Ewilib.Dtr -irffiM
Fixrd dQo.il with aigind ffiity of l-B Uutr 3 @tls

Toad

Fixrd drrocit with qigiDd ffiity of m thla thtE Mtis bu l@ thar Mlrc lMlhs #

I ledathfod dqxtulo Fy 24-25 Rt ,.45 tluiq,a pldgd ctcbra boat ga..oD@

A! rt
Mmh 31,2025

At ra
Mmh 31,2024

(Am. h INR Millioro)

A! rt
April 01,2023

PrnicubE

Ouatrndhg for follosing priodr frcm dw dst. of trecaiotr Totsl

ts6D6
oonlfu

6 Dorahr - I
YCs

l-2YqE 2-3Ym MorclhD3Ycm

(.) Utdi'Pud Tr.d. ReiEbLr gtiddld g6il

O) Uadilpud Trrd! ReiEbl€ wtid hlE ngnifd irc
i! Crldit RisI

(c) Udiryued T.!& Reiwblcr - edit iryircd

(O Di4uld T.d. RqirbL. @iddd tood
(c) Dilputd TrEd. REiEbLr whid h.E lignifd i@ iD

CEdit Ri*

O Dirpurd Trrde ReiEble. . oEdit iEpliEd

92.74 37.73 t30.51

Prrlicuhn

Oubtudlnt for followitr8 Friod! frem dE dra. of tm.caion Total

Idr thu 5

ronths
6 motrthr - I

Yqn
l-2Yen 2.3Yeln Morc ths 3 Yen

(.) Lhdi.F6il Tr.d. Reivrbb .q"kEd Spd
(b) UutilpuLd Tn& Rcinblo whi:[ baw rignilia irc

ir CEdir Ri*
(c) Undirpul€d Tn& ReiEbL. - oldit inD.ircd

(O Dilpu.d T..d. R@iltblcr qEilard good

(.) Dilprr.d T.!d. ReiEblq whid hrE ligDifod i@ itr
CEdir Rilt

(f) Dirpuld TEde RaiEbkr . eldit imp.ircd

35.t2 39.0E 0.76 15.6

Prrdcuhn

OutstudiD8 for follwing pcriodr fruo dw da& of anMctio! Totsl

Idthu6
moothr

5 moolht - I
Yen

l.2YcrF 2-3Yon Mor thu 3 YUE

(a) Undrsputed Trade Raeivabls midercd g6d

O) Undisgut€d Tnde Reinbls wtrich haw signr6c&t itre
in Cslil Risl

(c) Undisputcd Trsdc Rejvablc - crcdit inrgaircd

(d) Disputed Tmde Reivablc midoed god
(e) Disputod Trade Reivabls wlricl haw dgoif@t ircrc io

C.alil RisL
(0 Disputed Tnde Reiwblq - redit irnpaircd

t9.32 1932

0,09

0.(D

8.7E 23.36
22.3t

55.30

r.7r 4s.61 55J)

1.45

1.45

0.06

4.E0

245.49

0.03

0.05

74.67

0.6t
4.4t

39.25

250-36 44At 74.75

0. t0 6.32 0.25

0,t0 632 0.25

0.07
t:

0.81

0.05
30.21

23.97

39.36

0.05
t0.t6
13.67

It.63

o.o2 0.02

Told 6.7E 93.60 43.75
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Notes to the Finencial Ststemenb (Continued) (AEl h INn MilioE)

r4 Equlosh&Crpltrl

l4l n@ncllrtioofru!.rofEquitySh.grrd@uloooartrdln8taahcbctllDhtudrlttcodofai.Yry

oftc distibutim of all prufmtial amur, ia prcponio io dr6it shqdrcldings, in thc ovat of liquidarion. Elch shqeholdq ir otitlsd to re voto por shq€ held,

t42

1,tJ

14,4

lLrdlt d the b{rcd olbcftb. ah[ hr cd. b.e s hoos rtrE Dd / G thG borgha bsk durlrg thc loocdlrtcly D]E dltrt ! yon - NoE

rS OahcrEquity

I Rfirirsd @in8r
ti ollEdupEh@iEire

Told

f,.a.incd Ernhg'
Opoitrg b.b@
FiEt tim @tio of IND AS

Add:/ (Lt): Pt!6t/0N) fq t yd

Clolng bdue

li Othcr cooprchanlvt lrcore
Opafu bdau
On ahDtio ofIND AS 19

Add / (Ls): othdcotrry![atiE i@ fd dE yw
clolrt bdue

clsLf brlrtre (lHl)

NrlurudPuryorofHro 
-AI nc.drrcdminsJl !41-

Raio.d @iog! e th. profB th{ tt C@D6r:, h.r ad Etl &ra l5&y

145 Rlgto, Drfcuq ud sdcdou ratrctcd ao tb.E !

(D Tt Celpuy hls CIE A Cbar B ad Chs C Equity ShlE bdh of tu. l0/- 6n

boD iqE, hry bd dtL tbG of lh Cq.!y.

reF.h.c

to e.Dd/a dividod

O Ttc dividod propo.!4 if oy. by li. Bord dDiffi ir !ubj.{r b 6. rpporrl of lhle\oldst in dE cNitrg Anrul GoE l MdtrS. ODly dE holds! of Chsr B rhaB @ otid.d b @iE rhe dividad.

.)Itrlt ffidliqulhh.,lL.hatiolddecligibLbEiEtt l@iriry0sof6.C@p{yrnqdisihli(rof![Fdqatidltuil+itrpfilpatiob0Eirdrydoldhsr.

(ii) No divilod prq6.d bt fi. Bqd of DIffi wii:[ ir ebiq b t lpp@vd of shrEholdEr itr th. @itr8 AnDul CoEd l\rdio8"
(iii) D"iq th. y6, th. allud of F .hd. divitd @gtri!€d s difiibuti@ b cquity BlEtd5kbr i! R! NIL (Mrrch 3 I , 202{: R! NIL)

P.rtlcuhE

Pr@oerot4

A@ PEJ6 LLP

Totd

Pm0oaElte

AM Prcjea LLP

Toad

tu ilMrrcb 3lr m25

No. ofslrE ?6 oftotsl rh.E
4,750 47.50

4,750 47.50

Ar rl M.rch 31, 2024

No. ofStru .% oftotd.hru
4,750 41.50

4,750 47.50

% Chrgc durint

v1
g"

9_m 9a c-m q

No. ofshrE
4,750

4,750

% oftotrl rhrE
47,50

47.t0

No. ofshrE ',6 oftotd rh.E
47.50

47.50

4,150

4,750

?6 Ctugc durlor

w1
M.

9J{n 95 95X' 95

At ra
M.rch 31,2025

Ar ra
Mmh 31, 202,a

At ra
April 01, 202:t

(6.7e)140.02

(0.02)

(r.70)

(0.0t)

1,O.m (8.7r) (6.?9)

(t.70)

t44.72

(6 79)

(r.e0)

(1.61)

(5.19)

liO.02 (t.70) (6.191

(0.0r)

(0.0r) (0.01)

(0.02) (0.0r) -

.: 'l i.
hDrfqto d.tqrm Ed6rptid tgvc, dividod. q dhE dirEibuim psid b tlErdEld.rs.

A. .t MEh 31,2025
No.ofsh.g flDlrkht

0.0t

0.t0
0.t0

500

9,ru)
10,m0

At rl Mmb 31,2024
No.olshrrct Ihhkhr

0.01

0.10

0. l0

500

9,500

t0,m0

Ar.tApi{ 01,2023
No.ofshru lhtaklr

5fl)
q5m

10,000

0.0t
0. l0
0. t0

500

9,500

0.01

0.10

0.01

0. l0
500

9,500

500 0.01

9,500 0.10

Cld A EQity ShE dRt.lo- at d ntly p.i.hp
CLr D Equity SbB.aRa lU- d ed ftlly p.id{p

uba.lb.d .rd ltly p.l+up

Cbr A Equity Strs dtu.ld-.d
CIE B Equity SbE dtu. l(y. c.t
Cl& C Equity StaE dtr.l(y. E I

CLr A Equity She ofRt. l0- a.b
lhcEcSlnrlngofat Yu

500

9,5m

Ar rt Meb 31,2025
No.ofshrH {lDtrLhr

0.01

0.t0

At rl Mrrb 31,2024
No of Shrs t ltr kLh!

500 0.0t
9,500 572.29

500

9,5m

A! .l April 01,20tr1
No, otshlB { lD hl(hr

0.01

0.t0
t0-0041 o-lo t0,000 57229 10,000 0.10

AM PrcJ.d! LLP
NebRaIE@LLP

Totrl

At rt Mmh Jl,20a5
No.ofthaHhcld %Holdini

4,730 47.50

4,?50 47.50

Ar rl Mmb 31,202.{
No,oflhrEhcld % Holdlnl

4,750

4,750

47.50

47.50

Ar ra Apdl 01, 2023

No.ofthmh.ld % Holding
4,750 47.50

4,750 47.sO

9FoO 95 9500 95 9F00 95

?tTEniil

tnm trtn tfrxr]lll o- lo
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Particulars

Non-current liabilities

l6 Borrowings(non-current)
Secured - at amortised cost
5 35% Non-convertible debentures'

19 Borrowings (current)

Unsecured
From ultimate holding compmy

From other body corporatcsr

20 Lease liabilities (current)
Lere liabilities

Tot{l

2l Trade payables
A.Total outstandmB dues of micro md small enterprises

B Trade payables due to other thm Micro, Small md Medim Enterprises

Total

2l.l Trade Payable ageing schedule

2025

as on March 3 2024

As at
March 31,2025

(Amt in INR Millions)

As at As at
March 31,2024 April 01,2023

180.00

Tolal t80.00

nanfily.

l7 Other Iinancial liabilities (non-current)
lnterest accrued but not due on debenhtres 10.99

Total

l8 Provision (non current)
Provision for employee benefits for
Gratuity

r0.99

0.36

Totsl 0.36 0.17 0.02

0.17 o.o2

t,376.10 596. l0
523.s0

3E3.60

463.50

Secured - at amortised cost

5.35% Non{onvertible debentues I E0.00

Totel 1,376.t0 1,299.60 847.10

New Link Road, Andheri (ll), Munbai - 100053. T'he debentures were lo be redeemed wthin 3 years from lhe issuance dste i.e. by December, 2024. These debentures catied mteresl

ot the rate of 5.35% per annum which rc payable on moturity.

tlncludes interest ftee unsecured loans repayable on demand.

o.tz

o.t2

5.16
r 7.03

3.43
19.t7

0. r3
2.89

22.19 22,59 3.02

P8rticulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment Totsl

Less than I year I - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3

Yean
Undisputed
(i) Micro, Small md Medim Enterprises

(ii) Otlers

Disputed

(i) Micro, Small md Medim Enterprises

(ii) Others

5.t6
t6 64 0.39

5.16

l7.Gt

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

2 - 3 Years More thsn 3
Yea rs

TotalParticulars

Less thsn I year I-2Years

0.88

3.,l1}

19.17

Undisputed

(i) Micro, Small and Medim Enterprises

(ii) Others

Disputed

(i) Micro, Snatt md Medim Enterprises

(ii) Others €;il

3.43

18.28
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

22 Other llnanclel liabllitiB (current)
Retation money payable

Interest sccrued but not due on debenh[cs

Totsl

23 Other Cunent liabitities
Statutory dws paysble

- Goo& and s€Mc€ to(
- Tudeducted st $rce

Othq ststutory drcs psyable

Advmefromcutmm
Employ* bcnefis psyablc

Provision for expsres
Othm payables

Defmed reYmue

Totsl

24 Provisions (current)
Provision for eDployee betrefits for
Gmtuity

Total

25 Curretrt trx lisbilities (neo
Provision fs lnmme tax (Net of Tues Psid)

Total

53.50 25.94

19.68

4.22

53.50 45.63 4.22

57.32
0.t I

0.01

42.90

0.08
48.57

0. l9

0.03
L6l

3.45
0.57
8.99

L25
68.07

0.05
l 27

2.20

s.s r

4.25

r49.18 83.98 13.29

0.00 0.@ 0.00

0,00 0.00 0.00

I 3.85

13.8s

4i;,'..**.', Ar7, {:h',:/y'
' .-:::1 -'"

(Amt in INR Millions)

Outstsndlng for following perlods from the due date of peyment TotelParticulen

Lcss tban I yesr I-2Yearc 2 - 3 Years More thrn 3
Yean

Undlrputed
(i) Micro and small enterprises
(ii) Othen

Disputed
(i) Micro and small enterprises
(ii) Others

0. 13

2.89

0.13

2.89
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Perticuhrs

26 Revenuc from operrtions
Revenue from projects

Total

27 Other income

Interest income from
-Fixed deposits with banks

-lntercst on Income Tsx Refund

Totrl

2E Cost ofconstruction end development
Iand and development right expenses

Construction cost

Permission and approval fees

Other consruction cost

Employee benefi ts expense

Financ€ cost

Totrl

29 Changes of irvetrtories of linished goods end project work-in progress
(i) Opening balance
Construction work in progress

Finished goods

Total (i)

(ii) Closing balsnce
Construction work in progress

Finished goods

Total (ii)

Totrl (i)-(ii)

30 Employee Benefits Erpense
Salaries & wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity Expenses

Less: Transferred to cost ofconstruction and development

Total

3l Finence cost
Inlerest expenses on

- Debentues

- Lease Liability

Bank gurantee charges

kss: Transfened to cost ofconstruction and development

Total

32 Other expenses

Legal & professional fees

Rent Paid

Business promotion

Selling Expenses

- Stamp duty and registration charges

- Brokerage

- GST expenses on sales

Office Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Rates & taxes

Bank charges

Payment to auditor

- Statutory audit fees

As at

March 31,2025

1,034. l5

(Amt in INR Millions)

As at

March 31,2024

50 1.50

1.034.1 5 501.50

0.35

0.21

0.82

0.56 0.82

50.73

682.77

I 53.57

t2.67

7.87

6.89

25.17

49?.s6

202.48

10.71

4.82

9.66

914.51 750.39

l,173.E0 854.50

I,173.80 854.s0

I,l 73.80

1,356. l3
rJs6.l3 I,173.80

(182.33) (319.31)

7.6?

0.02

0. l8
(7.87)

4.68

0. 14

(4.82)

6.E6

(6.8e)

0.03

9.66

0.00

(e.66)

0.00

0.03

0. l4
1.00

63.39

20.53

t7.69

0.22

0.24

0.01

0.01

0.35

0.01

0.05

1.39

0.03

0.03

0.01

30.67

10.27

30.34

0.85

Total 103.62 73.64
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Notc! to thc Finrncbl Strtcmcr6 (Continucd)

iE coairtoalrDutkrl@1@tr

(Ara b Im Mubor)

33.r
P..tkuLE At.l A!.a Ar.r

I&ofetdil - 18.&

Tdd
.)BetClr@ffi Rl t.mffi Li-dI!EErofMhahhltuCmdh fapiliryiq@d ltid.cerpluicrqhld*i6
b)BetOwEwrhR l.25ifilliBirciEbrh.gtriq(tic€M)fauadsGirsdsloFdtdiviri€.doddbariaC.T.s.M.6gofdllsolhiw

2.25 mA!) 225

t3, Iaq
Cmp0yIrloE

Additid dEiEg lh. F
f,tldio dEi!8 tlE !E
AdidiG ofRthl of B .s
Croh8 Ed@

O,I I 0.t 5

0.lt

tu.| A!.1 At rl
P.rdculrE Mrrch3l,202s M.rh3l,202"l April 1,202,
OraiDg &l@ - o-12 o-21

AdditkE duitrg lb yE

hyM of hr libiliria dEiq rh. F
Clal{ B.LE
C.ld Flin o(le Lirlility
!{ccld ldtio of lar Lidility

(O Tt lou6lil h rhcrylu vdEdk E lirbility :

Totd
Tt6 @ity rdyrit of b.r li.liliti.! 6 dirlod iD l{oe 4l

0.t2

(iiil Thc follGlnr E da rrmnat Mkcd ln fit@a oa prda ed lo.t
P.rdcuLn Ar.l Ar.l Artt

!U!Eh 3l- 2o2S .U.Eh Jl, il02,l Apdl !,2q1r
D.Fed{io
b|d .@6 L.! li.lilitiB

0.0
0.t2

0.0t

0.t7
0.t2
0.t2

0.1 5

0.0t

0.il
0.m

Totd . 0.12 0.t6

3.1

Nmb6 of cquiry .b!6 d th. b.gieiry of 0E ,E
Equity ttm i0d dEiE tbF
Ntr of.{uity ddq d rh. d ofrh. F
w.i8td ry nDtsr of 4ity dEB qrdilg tuiB tu F
B.ac A ditu.d dDiDg' F $ar (b IllR)
FEEh.Fdn

l0,m l0,m

l0,m
l0,m

14.871.98

l0

t0,m
l0,m

(r 90.30)

l0

t6 Sc8l6a lrfomrlloo

Dtrgo.utlc c8@b i! ede Bft llt Equil@q of lDdie Miry SuDded |Colaltiq S.gM Rrlo.tird. di6cd ud6 UE C6p.ni6 Cndim Mting StEd{rd.) R'r16,201t.

33 Dlsh.uE o( lrMil dE b .opplLn unda "Tt Mi.ro, Spr[ ud Mcdiu EiltrprlE lrcacbpal Acl, 2uE (MSMED Act)" lt u undcn
P.iliculu At.l A! il Ar r1

. PtiEiFl@Miai4'4idbayrdirathladol'*hrydin8)a 3.21 f.4f 0.ll
b IntddErbedrt dof.d@iryyr
c PriEiFl@Flrbe4dirbq@drbFiddrydEiDSdrydh8F
d k tsi4'edr Sdio 16 of ITSMED Ad, b r4lh qffi l* tu mm A4 Epd tb mind dry duiry e y*
. lI@ Fil, e h |& k 16 of MSMED A.( b nElisr Egirdd uds tu M Ad, lryd h WtM &y dEiB h F
f M of iaH dE ct FFblc fa tb Fiod of dcky b mtirS |ryl (dift hE bar Fid hx bryqd lh. lpFidld dry duins lh! yd) hl wiuu( ddiDg lh. i[|d

Fi6d udq thir Ad

8 ID|d EU.d md luMini4 rmpoid a Uc ad of ah ffitiry F
h M of fdt- i@ lmhing dE rd FlrtrL ffi i, lh. r.E .diB rq dil ul e *t6lh. illld dE.bqE e srully Fid b lh. $uI dEFi*, fa UE

FF- of dj.UMF of . d.dqu. oqadi@ rrdE dir 23 of rb MIIMED Ac

DE bMbo&. Sodl EaEFis blE hc dffiiDd b bd Eb Fti6 hrw ba idatifid 6 tb 'Ihi! hr tEr rdid rpo by llt.tni6

31

0) Ccarutbdco
Tb ulrb uld Fwids irfq@i@ r!q! urdc @iwblq ffi .s .nd ffi lisbititi.. tqn mM wirh clffi b u follow:
Prfliculrn A!d At.a At ra

ffilNk
245.49
42.n

39.25
1t-52

39_25

6.45

(D

ParticuhI
ra Ar ra

Mrrh 31,2074
At rl

ADril 1.202JMrrh 3I,2023

Coptnd rrd

C@ .gd bHminsof th.y-
la:TEDrfEEdb@i*
A4r: RME rEogoilod (d of in*:iog)
B.hre.t ab..!d of tL.,qr

39.25

39_2t

245.49

74.67

72.11

36 9l
74.67

ua.$ 39.x 39.25

CltuF ln @nlm lhbllltls bdmq rE ! folbs.r(ii)

9, 71.52 645

Ar rl At at

M.Eh 31. mz
AmI

Aorll l. 2fiIl2tt5

Cmrd lhbillib

Co@ lilbilrtu d U! b{imiDg of th6 y{
L6: lsnie Eid dEirg ttr F
Add: Ad!!E luiwd &@ e'@ (d of ifr Ei{)
Add: Li.lilit, bw& lcquilitio of d+lryat righb
M: R@rugoiddEiqrEF(dof rdilld l@)
E Lla d ft 6d oraL yar

7 t.52
7t 52

42.fi 2.20

6.45

6.45

1.45

- fi.07 4.25

Prniolu MEh 31,2023 MrEh 31.202.1 Ap.il l,2023
OpoiBBd@ - o.ll 0.26
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Notes to thc Financirl Strtcmcnts (Continued) (Amr io rNR Miuiou)

3t Fitrucid dd. oruS@coa

C6tpaly's priEipql 6@!tl !$4! iElu& loaB 8Dd adE!c6, tEdc ad crlE Eivabkr, esh rd elh Gquivslats rnd ds freial es€ti.
Tfu Ccnpary lr apo*d eosb ilr openti.s to thc 6tlori4 6wid rirkr:
- Ma*d dsf.
- Crdn rislr rd
- Lltnirfity rirL
Tb Cryrf/t ftol ir !o @c lipiility stit i! sfEcid !o rd 6c Cqnpqys opqariml quitm. Thr Cqaroy mim ad @r.g6 kcy f@ial dsks p a !o miDimis paodal adw cfoar o ir frial pcrfr.
Thc Compory has g risk mogsn d Flicy which m thc rilts Mialrd wilh tlE fireid asds atd lisbilitiE. The d*ails for ruagirg €d of rh6c risks e wi!€d a[ad.

3t.l Mrrkct rLk
Ma*d d.L i! f ritl li.t tb hir EIE of fm @b 0d! of a fEEiaI iEhm wiI oum bquc of &n8p. h nurta prie. Marla rirl qnprirs thc typ6 d ri*r: idd e .idq enEcy risl ud aha prie risk.

apoew within roo+able p.rnd.rq stilc @inilnB $r i{lm-

r) Forcigo Curocy Rirk
tir6.ri*lt ltbfiirEIECfitEortfdsofuqpqrwill0lr@bqeof6.clungBitfocig!qcharee.ThrEisrforEign@nrcyrlstrthccisrorodirgforigDqrtwyqFcwalti.yqad.

b) InacGt ntc rfuk

cuag6i.ErkciGEtmtsoonpoo/r@sDdltdtmd.btobligili(aeoffx.dhteBre.Th@fo.!,tbrrercinteGstEtori!t!,cirerithathEerryirE.trMuth.tuE@hrlNwiuoudreb@wof
charur i! @td idsEd e.
Ttompoo/rfxodrebolwit|g!eqiddffiisGdd.TheyNlha€foEM$bj6lbiffiEtrrirtB&fn€diDINDASl0T,sinereiosthecaryilEMrcrdEfrturc6hflwwiI ouMb€awofaclEgeia
mrkd irteB Bt6

3t.2 Crcdit dlk

E wI a cxEdit o$qrB to qrrqE1 iEldilg dt adiDg rdBbk!.

qpcdrd ctEdit lq of ed ald elh
uustim. Furtba, ttr ompaay doe nd mhtsin lignified elh in had dh.r the th@ iquirrd for iB day !o day operatim. Cmidcring tlE !re, tt @pdy i! d d!o6€d b
ard b.r& bdrE

tignifstr. Thc CortlPuy eralualE lhc q!@atio of rist with Epoct to ra& reiwbla s lw, 6 re of it! ostqm cmrinltB signifi@t portim of tn& eivablq 6 d tlE yEr end.

39 Finencid rirk mrugcmcat (Corriwq

39.1 Liquidity rirh Drlr8octrl

dE Cdrpanyl d.bt olEEiig phB rid qlpli.E wit ieEl .aEEr of fil@ial po.itin db biga.

(i) Erpcctcd mrturity for finracld lirbilitiq

.includiry undimutcd intms

q

Ito AboY.5 yqn

rJ75.r0

E47. t0 t,027.10

0.13

2.E9

t0.99

TotdyqI

1,299.60 1299,@

180.m

3t, 2025

frcid liabilitiq.

3t*ztu

Iil,m23

Liabilitkr

fiIeial liabilitirs.

yqr

1,376.10

3.21

1E.99

53.r0
r8.99

5350

3.43

19.17

45.63

3.4J

19.17

45.6f

0. l3
2.89

4.22

{del otstediry du6 of mi@ ard sEll @teDri$
{otal otsaadiq dE of @diloB orter ttatr Ei@ and sEll cderpris

-{obl otrtaoding due of micrc aid sul @lsprie
.foal oBtaadiry &B of ceditoG otts tbaa nim ud sBX ederprig

Liabilni.s
palabl€s

Liabiltk!
pa)€bl€.

<ol ot*aadiry dc of mirc ald gEll ffip.ilc
-td.l dMding fu€ of sditor aher than nim a[d sMI ftrpri$
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Notes to thc Finrncirl Stetcmcnts (Continucd) (AEt in INR MiUioN)

Filroclrl rirk ulr8@cna (&ntiud)

Frir vduc EourECDar

bc signifienly diftot im the rdB thd wuld cmdly b€ @ivcd or r€filed.

Crrryinc rmt
FVTPL FYOCI Anonilcd Totrl Lcvcl I lsd? t vcl3

tr'mu.id.ffi
Nor{rut
l,eE
OOEfei.las
C!ro4
T.adr Eiwbkr
ctlh ad erh oquiElqtg

l@
OtlEr BUI Balare

O0rcr ffreial csds orat

1.00

t30.51

t.7t
0.09

1.45

250.36

l.m

130.51

E.7E

0.09

t.{5
250.36

Totd 392.1t

!tu$ciClblitb
Noruut
BorwiDg!
Ie liabilitirs

O6er freial lirbilities

Curot
Borwing,
las liabiliti!
Tn& palrbl6
OIE 6@isl liabiliti€s

Toad

1,375.10 1,376,10

1J98.29

Crnlnc Am,

FVTPL WOCI Amuonilcd Totll t v.l I kvcl2 Lrvel 3

22.19

53.50

22,r9

53SO

FEp.irlM
No!{l@a
l@
Oh6 fruid e!6ei!

CulEt
TEdc @ivabk!
Cish ald elh oquivahr
t@
Olf,er ff@id e*rs curEt
Totel

Finrncid li.biliti.r
No[*urrut
Bomingt
La& liabilitics

Oths 6@ial liabiliti€!

Curol
Bo.@iIgs
Laeliabilirig
Tr"& p6yabl€3

Toad

1.00 L00

75.6
45.67

44.4t

75.6
45.67

44.4t

1,299.60 t,29p.fi

22.59

45.63

22.59

45.63

April l!t,2023 Crn?lng Amount Feir Valuc

FVTPL FVOCI Ammortfued Totsl
Cosa

kvcl I lsel2 Lscl 3

Finm.i.l Gr.t.
NoHurma
L@
Other 6l@ial .sd!
Curot
TEde @ihbl€r
Cssh aDd erb equiElal!
L@

Tord
Finmci.l lirbilitkr
No&currut
Boming,
Laeliabiliti€
Ods 6@ial liabiliriB

Curmt
Borwingt
Ie li.biliti€g

Trade payabl€e

Oth6 6@id liabilIi€

Tord

It0.00

10.99

E47.10

0.12

7.02

4.22

r80.00

10.99

847.10

0. l2

3.02

4.22

2.3t

t9.32

55.30

74.75

2.3t

t9.32

55.30

7475

l5l.6E l5r.6E

',',,3!49
|r. -l rzi)

....

392.18

t66,75 166.75

1367.t2 tJ67.t2



Chandra Gupta Estates Private limited
CIN: A 7 0 I 00MIt I I EEPTCU9306

Notes to thc Finrncirl Strtcmctrts (Continued) (Aot in rNR Miuioni)
{l Crpilrl MmScEGrt

luimis the rlsrdpklq yrlw & Dtutd! e optinul q+iEl stru(trrc io rcdue dE 6t of €piEl.
In dder to Eimir a adjd th. epitrl dtmrq &c G@p my adjN tlE alrm of dividod! paid b shrrcholdeB, mil €pit8l b slEfilDl&B, ise w slm, tdue debt o. Ell ass.

mganeu, rmoglt dh6 6hgn siru !o @rc th.t it nE€tr 6@ial @@t! .ttachd to tlE bomitr8s thal dofire thr €pital ltrduE rEqui@t!

G!!dlEg!
TIE gsrng ntio at tle qd of th€ rrpqting Dqin w s folbu:

PrrticulrE !4qq! 31, 202s MrrclllL?g2a 4pal !.2021

Detts (mprir6 of @nEl & mqiqf bqwugt)
C$h &. B.Dt ba,lr6
Ncr d.bt (A)
Totd rquity (B)

Nct d.bt lc cquity rtio (A / B)

1,376.10

(t0.221

lJ85J2
140.10

9.90

1,29D.&
(45.67)

1,345.21

(&6r)
(rs5.2e)

1,027.10

(55.30)

r,082.40
(6.6e)

(r5r.74)

".. .;' \ 
1l'4'



Chandra Gupta Estate Private limited
CIN:U70100MH1 9EEPTC049306

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42 Disclosures of Employee Benefits

- 42.1 Gratutity

(Amt in INR Millions)

The Company operates an unfunded benefit Gratuity Plan.

The entity's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees. Gratuity is paid from entity as and when it becomes due and is paid as

per entity scheme for Gratuity.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements

a) Changes in Defined Benelit Obligations

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Opening defined benefits obligation
Current Service Cost
lnterest Cost
Actuarial losV (gain) on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions

Actuarial losV (gain) on obligations - due to change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss on obligations - due to experience
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions
(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestnents)
Past Service Cost
Benefits Paid
Closing defined benefits obligation

b) Change in plan assets

0.17
0. l6
0.01

0.02

(0.00)

0.02
0.13
0.00
0.0r

0.01

0.170.37

Particulars As at As at
March 31 2024

Fair value ofplan assets at the beginning
Adjustnrent to the opening balance
lnterest Income
Employer Contribution
Actuarial gair/ (loss) on plan assets

ActuaI Company Contributions
Transfer of Assets

Benefits Paid
Closing fair value of plan assets

the year

c) Net Liability recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars
March 31. 2025

As at
March 31.2024

As at

Present Value ofthe obligation as at the end ofthe year

Fair Value ofthe plan assets as at the end ofthe year

Net (Asset) / liability recogrrised in the balance sheet

d) Expenses recognised in Statement ofprofit and loss during the year

0.37 0.17

0.170.37

Particulers As at
March 31.2025

As at
March 31,2024

Current service cost
Past service cost

lnterest Cost
Actuarial (Gains/Losses

Expected retum on plan assets

Expenses recognised in Statement ofprofit and loss during the year

e) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year

0. l6 0.13

0.00
0.02

0.150.19

0.01

0.02

Particulars

Actuarial loss / (gain)

Return on plan assets,

As at As at
2024
0.02

lncome

0.02

0.02Expenses/ (income) Comprehensive Income during the year

March 31

0.02



Chandra Gupta Estate Private limited
CIN :U701 00MHr9E8PTC049306

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
O Comnosition of plan assets is as follows:

(Amt in INR Millions)

Particulars As at As at
March 3l 2025 March 3l 2024

Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Infrastructure Bonds
Reverse Repos

Others

s) Actuarial assumotions - sratuity
Particulars As at As at

March 3l 2025 March 3l 2024
Discount Rate

Rate of Salary Increase

Retirement Age
Attrition Rate

Mortality Rate

6.710/o 7.20o/o

10.00% 10.00o/o

60 to 74 years 60 years

8.00% 8.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)
(Urban) 

t

h)Experience adiustment - sratuity
Particulars As at As at

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status (Surplus)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (0.00) 0.01
Experience adjustnents on plan liability loss

Experience adjustnents on plan assets gain / (loss)

I) Sensitivity Analysis
Sigtificant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period while holdine all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31.2024

Discount Rate
PVO at the end of the period (Discount Rate - l7o)
PVO at the end of the period (Discount Rate + l7o)

Salary Growth Rate

PVO at the end of the period @iscount Rate - lold

PVO at the end of the period @iscount Rate + l7o)

Attrition Rate

PVO at the end of the period (Discount Rate - lolo)

PVO at the end of the period (Discounl p61s + l%)

0.04
(0.04)

(0.03)

0.02

(0.02)

(0.02)

0.02

(0.02)

(0.01)

0.01

0.02

0.04

..-*rl.-.-.
" \.i

i;W



Chandra Gupta Estate Private limited
CIN:U701 00MH1988PTC049306

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) (Amt in INR Millions)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the

change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value ofthe Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected

unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised

in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

j) Risk Analysis
Risk associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are: - (i) Asset Liability Matching Risk, (ii) Interest Rate (discount rate risk),
(iii) Mortality Rish (iv) Salary Risk

Asset Laibilitv Matchins Risk
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds,

Interest Risk (discount rate risk)
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision.

Mortalitv Risk
The present value ofthe defrned benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate ofthe mortality ofplan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectarcy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. Since the benefits under the

plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk

Salarv Risk
The present value ofthe defrned benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries ofmembers. As such, an increase in the salary of
the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation ofthe plan assets and the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation were carried out at 3l March 2025 by

IWS. K. A. Pandit Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the dehned benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured

using the projected unit credit method.

L) The expected marurif analysis of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Defined Benelit Obligation
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
lst Following Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year

5th Following Year

Sum ofYears 6 To l0
SumofYears ll andabove

The average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation represents average duration for active members at 3lst March 2025

0.00
0.00
0.01

0.08
0.02

0.14
0.61

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.01

0.08
0.4t

,.&



Chendn Guptr Estatc Privatc limited
CIN:U7O1 00MHr988PTC049306

Notes to thc Finrnciel Strtcmcnts (Continued)

43 Itatios
Tlc folbwug e @lyti..l mir fq tio fqr odod M.r& 31, 2025

Rcum if vriue is morc tbu
Sn No. P.rticuLE Nu@ralor IlcooDiulor Mrrch 31, 2025 Mrrch 31, 2024 Yrise

b Mt - Equity Ralb Told Debt Tdrl Equrty 9.82 (r50.9t) -t07% oo@nt
@ing

th. ,€r
E

Debt Scvioc Comap Ratio Prcfit fq tlE,Br (+) Firc C6t
(+) DspEiario

lnt€d (+) Prircipal
RrD6,1ffi

o.22 0.(x 42to/" o@ul
in pofit

d R.tum 6 Equity (ROE) Prc6t aft6 tax AEage Total Equity 24.f/.

t09%

Chargo itr Rtio @idy 6 a@t
of irclq$ in prcft &riry tlE

,wmp6rctop@iNlw.

c ItrwllryyT|ffiRatio RstgNfuropsal@ Arcr8gp hvotory 0.82 0.19

65yo

Clruge in ntio minly o rcourt
of irclq$ iD sl6 aDd awEge
inBtsy durilu 0p,w.

f Romue ftw opeBtiN Awnge Tnde Reiwble 10.03 10.56

-50

Cbarye ir ntio Einly @ aE@ni
of inprctmt h Tnde
Reiwable Policy

s TEd. p6y8bb. ElW db CrEdit Purdus Aurge Trade Payrblc 40.t4 5t.59

-lv

ChilUc in rgtio minly d a@t
of ircrcinpurctrc

b 0. t4 0.01

235to

Cbsrgc in ratio mirily o arut
ofirc in prcfit dudng tlrc

N6epitslffidb Reuw&qnopquio Wqlurg CapiEl

I Ner prc6a M8rgir Rrmuc fror op€Btiru t4.3to/o 4.380/o

-389v/.

ChaBc itr Etio minly on a@nt

ywsD4bpEi@)@.

j RrhrE 6 €pital ilplolrd (ROCE) Prc6r beforc rax (+) Fi@ Co6r Cspitsl Enplold t3.570h 0.550/o

23580

Changc in rario minly m a@nt
of irclle in prcfit dudng the

)@rmpebpwi@s,@.

L Rfr6 o Inw.tE(ROI) Tdd Aset! lt o.Avni

2274.

Chilgp i, diominlyo@l
ofi@ h p@fit during tlE
ys mpe to prcviru yBr.

4

o

Trade @ivabl€! tumr mtio

Prcfu after tax for tho )@

Esning befo,r iturcd sod tax6



Chandra Gupta Estate Private limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

44 Additional regulatory requirements under Schedule III
(i) Dcasik of Benrmi Prcperty held

(ii) Borewing scurcd sgsintt cureot a$et!

statement to the bak on monthly bais o also the Quuterly Infomation Stalements.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The Compay hr not ben delqed wilful defaulter by my bmk or finacial institutron or gov€mment or ay govmment authority.

(iv) Relsaion3hip with rtruck olf compania
The Compay hu no trostions with the ompmies struck olT under Compmies Ac! 2013 or Compeies Act, 1955

(v) Compliance with number oflayen olcompanie

The Compoy hr complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 20 I 3 read with the Compoies (Restriclion on the number of layers) Rule, 201 7

(vi) Utiliation of bom*ed fund and rhrr premium

a. drretly or indiretly lend or invat in other p€rsns or entities identified in my maner whatwver by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiuies) or

b. provide my guumte, wurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaiq

a. dirorly or indiratly lend or invct in other perrcns or enlities identified in my moner whalwver by or on behalf of the Fundrng Party (Ultimare Bmeficiuic) or

b provide oy guamte, wurity or the like to or on beha.lf of the ultimare beneficiuis

(vii) Undbcloscd Income

There is no inome surendered or dirclosed 6 income during the cur@t y@ in the tax rements uder the ln@me Til Act, 1961, that h6 not ben rmrded in the books of a@ut

(viii) Dea8ik of crypao curency or virtual curency
The Compuy hc not traded or invested in crypto curency or vidual cunency during the curent y@

(ir) Valuation of Property Pl8na and Equipment and lntangible asset

The Compuy ho not revalued its property, plot md equipment (includinB Right.of-Use Nls) or intilgible 6sets during the cur€nt ys

(ri) Title deed3 olimmovrble prcpertig held in nrmc of the comp8ny

All the title immovable properties held in the nme of mmpay

(tii) Complisnce with approved Scheme(3) ofArsn8emesa!:
The rcmpay hr not trtered into my sheme of ilegment in tems of wtion 230 to 237 of the Compuies Act 2013.

(riii) lnvBtor educotiotr snd preteaion futrd:
There were no mounts whrch were requirei to be tresfered to the lnvcslor Education od Prot&tion Fund by the Compily.

(riv) Pending litiSotioni & derivste contract!i
The Compuy dcs not have By pending litigations which would impact its finucial position.

The Compoy did not have ily long-tem @ntracts including deriEtive @ntrrcts for which there were my materia.l foresable losses.

(tv) Sub3equena event!:

There qe no significat subsquent events thar would require adjustment or di$losures in the finacial statements c on the balmce sheet date.

(rv) Puious yor figures:
(xiv) Previous year's figures have bem regrouped / rrclcsified wherever nsessry to conespond with the cunent yu's clcsifietion/ dirclosures.

,/--)g
rz\



Chandra Gupta Estate Private limited
C I N: U70 I 00M H 1 988 PTCN 9i 06

Notes to the restated financial statements (Continued)

45 Relst€d prrty dhclosurB
As per 6e lndiu Ac@uting Standud.24 on "Related Party Disclosures", list of related pmie identified of the Compoy ue s follom.

(s) List of relsted prrtiB snd relatioNhips with whom transaction have trken plsce snd relstionlhips ofcortrol

P8reoa and ultim8te par€nt
Sri lrhs DwelopeE md Reolty Limited (I'ozerly lown as AKP
Holdings Uhited and AKP Holdingr Priwte Liilited)

ll Eotity having signilicut inllucne
Sil Lotus Developem md Realty Limiled (Fouerly knwn os AKP
Holdings Linited and AKP Holdings Priwte Liniled)

lll Key manrgerial personnel (KMPs)
Ramsh Ludhui (Diraor)
Rakch Kailoh Gupta
Nimir vray ShEh

DattaLry Mmti Khmku
Kmhaiyalal Jchi
Amol Kmble
Kmal Dalia
Dimple Dalia

Ultimare holdirg @mpuy w.e.f April 10,2023
(Holding Through Noteric Real Estate LLP & Anm Proj*ts LLP)

upto April 09, 2023

(Holdine throush Arm Proi4ts LLP)

Dir6tor w e.f. D@mber 14, 2024
Dir@tor w.e.f. D@mbet 14,2024
Director w.e.f Decembq 14,2024
Dir6tor till D*mber I 6, 2024

Director till De@mber 16, 2024

Director till Deember 16,2024

Relarive of KMP of Ultimate Holding Comparry

Relative of KMP of Ultimate Holding Comparry

Iv Entity Controlled by person hrvinS Significant Influence
Pudit Fmily Trul
Dev Lad & Houing Pnvate Limited

(b) Balaoces Outstlnding and Transsctions during ahe yesr ended with related parties are as follows:

(i) Disclosure in r6pst of tr8rs8caioN wiah Relsaed Prrti6:

March 31.20i15 Marcb 31.20i14

Unsecured loan taken
Sri Lots Delop€E od Redty Limited (Fomerly hnm s AKP
Holdinss Limited Md AKP Holdins Pnvate Limiled)
Dev Led & Ho6ing Private Limited

Un$curcd lom Paid
Dev Lud & Housing Pnvate Limrted

Inlerest on l)ebenaure issued
Pudit Fmily Trut

Invoicins sssinst S8l6 of propertis

Kmal Dala
(fotal value o/ Sale o/ ofrce units is ? I 3.00 millions, against which inyoice v,qs raised duting the Year Mqrch 2025:

Nil; and F.Y.2021 of Ps.9.52 nillions )
Dimple Dalia

(l'aol value of Sole of ofrce ilnils is { I 3.30 nillions, ogoinst vhich invoice was roited dunng lhe Yeor March 2025 of
k.l l .i nillions)

Ollice Ermns Peid
Sil lat6 Dewlopen Md Reahy Linircd (F*nerly lobwn 6 AK? Holdings
Liilircdand AKP Holdings Ptieote Linted)

Redemtioo olDebeoture
Pedir Fmily Trut

(ii) Outstanding Bslsnces

780.00

411.50

6.86

4.t6

l 3.30

0.22

180.00

2t2.50
l0 00

9.66

3.85

Unsecured [pan
Sri tohE DevelopeE od Realty Limited (Fomerly kmM N AKP
Holdhss Limited ed AKP Holdrns Private Limited)
Dev lmd & Ho6ing Pu Ltd.

2 DeberturcsOutstsndins
Pudit Fmily Trut

Inter$a on Debenaures PsYrble
Pddit Fmily Trut

Tmde Reccivable
Dimple Kmd Da.lia

45 '0 0O' denotes mowt less thm INR Five thousmd.

47 Thcse finmcial statemmts have been approved for issue by the boud ofdirectors at its meeting held on Apil 26,2025

Summary of significmt rcrcuting policies

The &@mpuying not6 I to 47 ue integal pd of the fimcial smemas

For T.P. Ostwal [g Associates LLP
Chanered Accountants

Fim Regrstration No 124444W/100150W

1,375.10

7.96

596. r0
473.50

383.60
463.50

1E0.00

19.68

For snd on behdfof lhc Board ofDireclon of
Chudrs Gupta Estat6 Privale limited

CINiUT0 I 00MH I 988PTC049306

t80.00

10.99

@.1, (?vM
Esh, P. Shsh
Patuer
MembeEhip No.l41874

Plee: Mumbai
Dare. Apnl 26, 2025

Ram6h lxdhmi
Dir*tor
DIN No. 0699203?

Rrk6h Gupt
DirEtor
DIN No.10872369

Plrc:Mmbai
Dale: April 25, 2025

Plre:Mmbai
Dare: April 26, 2025
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